ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
January 25, 2006
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Harry Crawf ord
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 223

"An Act |levying a tax on certain known resources of natural gas,
conditionally repealing the levy of that tax, and authorizing a
credit for paynments of that tax against anounts due under the
oi | and gas properties production (severance) t ax if
requirenents relating to the sale and delivery of the natura
gas are net; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 374

"An Act relating to establishment of a retirenent benefit
liability account in the Departnent of Revenue and redirecting
deposit of annual dividends of the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation to that account; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 375

"An Act relating to the retirenment benefit liability account and
appropriations from that account; relating to deposits of

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2006



certain incone earned on noney received as a result of State v.
Amrerada Hess, et al., 1JU 77-847 Civ. (Superior Court, First
Judicial District); and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 223

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE | NCENTI VE/ GAS TAX
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CROFT

03/ 17/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 17/ 05 (H) WM O8G, RES

04/ 25/ 05 (H) WM AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 25/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 25/ 05 (H) M NUTE( &M

01/ 11/ 06 (H) WM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 11/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 11/ 06 (H) M NUTE( &M

01/ 18/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 18/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 18/ 06 (H) M NUTE( &M

01/ 25/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 374

SHORT TI TLE: RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ AHFC
SPONSOR(S): WAYS & MEANS

01/ 17/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 06 (H) WeM STA, FIN

01/ 20/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 20/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 06 (H) M NUTE( &M

01/ 25/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 375

SHORT TI TLE: RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ PF
SPONSOR(S): WAYS & MEANS

01/ 17/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 06 (H) WeM STA, FIN

01/ 20/ 06 (H) WM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 20/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 06 (H) M NUTE( &M

01/ 25/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -2- January 25, 2006



W TNESS REG STER

JACK GRI FFIN, Vice President

External Affairs

ConocoPhi |l I'i ps Al aska, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 223.

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section

Division of Retirenent & Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 374 and HB 375,
provi ded i nformati on on Al aska's health care system

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH cal | ed the House Special Commttee on \Ways

and Means neeting to order at 9:01:47 AM Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Mses, Sanuels, and Seaton were present at the call
to order. Representatives Guenberg, Rokeberg, and W]Ison
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representative Harry

Crawford was al so in attendance.

HB 223- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE | NCENTI VE/ GAS TAX

9:01: 58 AM

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 223, "An Act levying a tax on certain known
resources of natural gas, conditionally repealing the levy of
that tax, and authorizing a credit for paynments of that tax
agai nst anounts due under the oil and gas properties production
(severance) tax if requirements relating to the sale and
delivery of the natural gas are net; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:03: 08 AM

JACK CGRIFFIN, Vice President, External Affairs, ConocoPhillips
Alaska, Inc., said HB 223 is described by its sponsors as
“creating an incentive for conpanies...to nove forward on
developing a North Slope gas project,” and ConocoPhillips
Al aska, Inc. (Conoco) has presented testinony in opposition
before, so he does not want to repeat it. He said Conoco

al ready possesses all the incentive necessary to nove forward on

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- January 25, 2006



a North Slope gas project, and has "taken every reasonable step
within its power to do so."™ He added that the commttee knows
wel |l that Conoco has reached an agreenent with the state on the
base fiscal and other terns necessary to nove the project
f orward. He said an agreement was reached in principle on
Cct ober 21, 2005, and Conoco has worked diligently to resolve
technical and drafting issues. He stated that Conoco now has a
deal with the state that it is willing to use as a basis to nove
f orward. Since reaching that deal, Conoco and the state have
been trying to negotiate a conprehensive agreenent that includes
t he other major North Sl ope producers.

MR. GRIFFIN said the agreenent with the state is the culmnation
of a multi-year effort following a $125 mllion cost study in
2001 to nove the gas project to the next phase of devel opnent.
H s conpany took a |eadership role in seeking a reauthorization
of the Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act, which has led directly to
its contract with the state. Conoco took a |eadership role, he
opined, in several pieces of federal legislation to streanline
the permtting process and lower the cost of debt on the

project. "Cbviously we have taken a |eadership role in crafting
and in finalizing an appropriate fiscal contract for devel opnment
of North Slope gas." He said the conpany is ready and wlling

to nove to the next phase.

MR CRIFFIN stated that the next step requires economnies of
scale that can't be nmet by his conpany alone. He told the
commttee that the governor said that the best and nost
efficient way to nove forward is to conclude negotiations
between the state and the three mmjor North Slope producers.

"We agree," he said. He added that HB 223 underm nes the
efforts by penalizing Conoco. "There is nothing ConocoPhillips
can do to avoid inposition of HB 223's new tax, short of
surrendering the billions of dollars we have already invested in
t he devel opnent at Prudhoe Bay.” He said it has been suggested
that the conpany can avoid this new tax by selling its gas, but
he said that is not true. He said the tax is automatic and
unavoi dabl e. Supporters of the tax say it will be refunded if
the North Slope producers nove forward with the project, and he
said that is msleading. The tax for his conpany wll likely
exceed $200 nmillion per year over the next ten years, he stated.
That nmoney will not be refunded for 10 to 25 years from now, he
said, with no allowance for the tinme value of noney. That ,
coupled with a limt on deductions, ensures that the refunds
will only be a fraction of the taxes that are actually paid, he
sai d. He concluded that the bill is bad public policy and

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2006



unfair, and there are a host of other issues that he has not
addressed, including constitutional ones.

9:09: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked how the agreenent works between the
three conpanies and if it was possible for Conoco to nove
forward without its Prudhoe Bay partners. He noted that M.
Giffin said that Conoco can't ship or sell gas.

9:10: 37 AM

MR CRIFFIN said the unit agreenent is a partnership for the
devel opment of the resources to ensure there isn't physical or
econonic waste of the resource within a given area. "Right now
there are no clear provisions for allowing ConocoPhillips to
nove forward on its own. That is something that would have to
be addressed if we ever got to that point. But clearly, as the
governor stated, the best and nost efficient way to nove forward
is to do so with the agreenent of all of the major North Sl ope
| ease hol ders. ™

9:11: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that when gas cones up, Conoco re-
injects it. He asked if one third [of the gas] belonged to
Conoco and was enough gas to pay the tariff to build a pipeline,
could the conpany take that gas and claimit to be theirs wth
BP and Exxon's gas remaining in the ground.

9:12: 07 AM

MR GRIFFIN answered that it would be difficult but not
i npossi ble. He added that it would not be ideal for Conoco.

9:12: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Conoco was to sell its one-third
share of gas, if there would be a cause of action between the
other parties if doing so would reduce the flow of oil from
Prudhoe Bay. He asked if the production agreenent requires the
production of gas, and if only one party is producing gas, which
t hen reduces the anount of oil, would that be a violation of the
agreenent .

9:13: 36 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -5- January 25, 2006



MR GRIFFIN said, "I can't say it would be a violation; | think
| could say that if one party to the North Slope unit agreenent
- or the Prudhoe Bay unit agreenent and the Prudhoe Bay
operating agreenent - wanted to take its gas in kind w thout the
participation of the other unit owners, we would nost |ikely see
the courts asked to resolve differences in interpretation of
t hose agreenents.”

9:14:14 AM
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH said he thinks that is a "yes."

MR. SEATON said that oil conpanies have indicated that to him
He added, "Although it could legally be possible under gas, it
would be legally very involved when you got into one owner
taking part of the gas and that inpact on the oil. And so |
think we need to consider that as well."

9:14: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he believes the Alaska G| and Gas
Conservation Comm ssion and the court system would have "a | ot
of issues with how nmuch gas you can take off and how nuch goes
back in also, so it would be conplicated even further."

9:15:12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, on the flip side, how Conoco

prevents itself from being held up by one of the other parties
who doesn't want to produce.

9:15: 23 AM

MR GRIFFIN said that is exactly how he would characterize the
negoti ati ons under the Stranded Gas Devel opnment Act. "We're al
trying to cone together on a set of commercial terns that works
for all of the major North Slope gas owners." He added that if
the state, Conoco, BP and ExxonMobil Corporation "are not all
holding hands,” noving forward on a gas project wll be
difficult.

9:15:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is a new negotiation, but
what he would like to know is what the agreenent allows on an
on-goi ng basis. "Suppose one or nore of you decides to cut down
on the production, how does the one-of-you that wants to produce

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2006



stop the others fromjust stopping that?" He said he knows they
are all smart enough to have figured that out, and he would |ike
to know how.

9:16: 26 AM

MR GRIFFIN said, "Generally speaking, the working interest
owners in a unit such as the Prudhoe Bay unit are going to be
aligned in trying to nmaxim ze the production that can be derived
economcally from a unit like that." He added that there are
conpl ex agreenents to govern the relationship between them

9:17: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "So you have already pre-agreed
to agree.”

9:17:12 AM

MR. GRIFFIN said, "Qobviously we have agreenents at Prudhoe Bay
governing our relationship with the other working interest
owners there, and we have cone together for the purpose of
maxi m zing the production and maximzing the value of the
Prudhoe Bay oil and gas resource.”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "And not in restraint of trade?"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that agreenment was in witing
or just an oral understanding.

9:17: 59 AM

MR CGRIFFIN said it is witten in the Prudhoe Bay Unit
Agr eenent .

9:18: 26 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said the purpose of this bill is to develop
Al aska's gas "to get those who are sitting on the gas to nove
forward on a gas pipeline. If we don't do that we're going to
tax you. Once you develop it we will refund the tax.”" It is an

incentive to nove the gas to market to benefit Al askans, so he
asked why it is bad public policy.

9:19: 07 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2006



MR GRIFFIN said it is bad public policy because Conoco has al
of the incentives necessary. "This bill reaches too broadly,"”
he opi ned. The state has provided the right incentive by
authorizing the admnistration to enter negotiations with the
other major North Slope gas owners on a set of fiscal terns that
W Il increase investor confidence and allow this project to nove
f orward. Using a tax "as a weapon to force private parties to
expend billions of dollars on the state's behalf w thout regard
to whether the investnent makes sense, and there is nothing in
the bill that requires that the investnent actually makes sense,
is a novel and unprecedented use of a state taxing authority,”
he stated.

9: 20: 37 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said, "The gas is wused as part of the
corporation's portfolio to show stockholders that the price of
the stock is adequately valued because you are sitting on this
| arge resource, and it is unfair to serve as a reserve for the
benefit of the corporation just to show that on the bottom
line." He added that it does Al askans nore good to have it
devel oped. He said perhaps Conoco wouldn't be taxed because it
is poised to go forward, but others should be taxed.

9:21:21 AM

MR. GRIFFIN said there is no benefit to a corporation to sit on
Prudhoe Bay gas. "You cannot count that gas as part of vyour
reserves base for purposes of reporting to the Securities and
Exchange Commission and to your shareholders and potenti al

sharehol ders wuntil you' ve authorized the developnent of the
proj ect necessary to nove that gas to market.” He said even if
the bill is constitutional, it is wunfair because it reaches

those who are in agreement with the state and are notivated to
nmove forward.

9:22:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inferred that ExxonMobil Cor por ati on,
ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc., and other owners of |eases on the
North Sl ope do not have any gas reserves listed in any of their
hol di ngs.

9:23:11 AM

MR. GRIFFIN said he can't speak for any other conpany, but "our
understanding” is that "until you authorize the expenditures

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2006



necessary to nmke those reserves marketable, they don't becone

reserves for reporting purposes. They' re known resources, but
they're not reserves ... and that is what sharehol ders | ook at."
9:23: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Giffin to provide information
on the constitutional issues he spoke of. He noted that forner
Governor Hickel said this tax was a form of punishnent, and
Representative Rokeberg finds it "grossly unfair,"” because it

points a gun at the conpany when in fact it is doing everything
to nove forward to nmarket.

9:25:18 AM

MR. CRIFFIN said he agrees, and Conoco has done its utnpbst to
work with the state, so it would be punishing a conpany for
doi ng exactly what the state has requested.

9:26: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that M. Giffin testified that
this legislation would require Conoco to pay $2 mllion a year
for 10 years. He asked if the conpany would stay in Al aska
under those terns.

9:26:46 AM

MR. GRIFFIN said that he doesn't see Conoco |leaving the state as
a consequence of this bill. "The state is too inportant,” he
said, and it would be disappointing and have an effect on how
the conpany |ooks at future investnents in the state. He said
he considers the state a partner of Conoco.

9:27:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for M. Giffin's thoughts on
former Governor Hickel's comment that the producers would not
sell the gas to Yukon Pacific, and what M. Giffin thinks would
have happened if the state had sold the gas to Yukon Pacific and
how much the state woul d have | ost.

9:28: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, regarding M. Giffin's coment that
his shareholders would be disappointed with HB 223, asked

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -9- January 25, 2006



whet her the voters are shareholders too, "and don't you think
t hey are di sappoi nted when you don't produce?"

9:28: 51 AM

MR CGRIFFIN said his mnessage is that Conoco wants to nove
forward with North Sl ope gas devel opnent in partnership with the
state, which will be a decades-long partnership. He said there
are nmenber s of the Al askan public who refl ect sone
di sappoi ntnent, but his conpany is working very hard. He said
to keep in context "where we've been and where we are today."
When Prudhoe Bay was developed, natural gas prices did not
support transportation infrastructure. "The state would be in a
far, far poorer place today had we been foolish enough to build
a gas project back then ... W would have lost not only the
value of the gas for all Al askans, we would have also lost the
val ue of approximately three billion barrels of oil at Prudhoe
Bay that we have been able to recover as a consequence of re-
injecting that gas."

9:31: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the legislature does not expect
people to be clairvoyant, "but there is a reasonable expectation
that if you enter into a lease, you will get a royalty as soon
as possible, and it will be continuing. That's what any |essor
requires.” He wondered if it is fairly comon to have a cl ause
in a lease to require production and asked, "Isn't that pretty

much of a standard el sewhere in the worl d?"

9:32: 32 AM

MR GRIFFIN said he is unfamliar with a clause or law |li ke HB
223 anywhere in the world. North Slope |eases do have term
limts, which are extended if the |leases are in a unit. "W are

in conpliance with all of the requirenments of those |eases.”

9:33: 33 AM
REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said production of oi | has been
decreasing, and she asked what wll production do wthout the

gas being re-injected.

9:34: 14 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 10- January 25, 2006



MR. GRIFFIN said the conmpany uses water for pressure mnaintenance
and enhanced oil recovery on the North Slope, but he said he
can't give an estinmate.

9: 35: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that M. Giffin said he is not
aware of ternms simlar to the bill before the coommttee, and he
asked if he was aware of any other contract provisions that seek
t he sane goal of stinulating and ensuring production.

9:36:12 AM

MR GRIFFIN said every resource owner has an incentive to
encour age | easehol ders to produce as soon as practical. He said
in other jurisdictions around the world there mght be
production-sharing agreenents, which are analogous to the
negotiation his conpany is involved with in the Stranded Gas
Devel opnent Act. Most |ease provisions include lease term
l[imts in the event that they are not devel oped, he said. The
Al aska project is truly unique, at least in the United States
he opi ned.

9: 38: 06 AM
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HB 223 woul d be hel d over.

HB 374- RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABILITY ACCT/ AHFC
HB 375- RETI REMENT BENEFI T LI ABI LI TY ACCT/ PF

9: 39: 29 AM

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 374, "An Act relating to establishnent of a

retirement benefit liability account in the Department of
Revenue and redirecting deposit of annual dividends of the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation to that account; and
providing for an effective date.” and HOUSE BILL NO 375, "An
Act relating to the retirement benefit liability account and
appropriations from that account; relating to deposits of
certain incone earned on noney received as a result of State v.
Anrerada Hess, et al., 1JU 77-847 Cv. (Superior Court, First

Judicial District); and providing for an effective date."
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said the commttee received a letter and report

yesterday from the chair of the Al aska Retirenent Mnagenent
Board (ARMB).

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2006



9:41: 01 AM

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnent of Admnistration, said
there are three primary drivers for the unfunded liability for
the Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS) and Teachers

Retirement System (TRS), and those are: rising healthcare costs,
| oss of investnent inconme, and changes in assunptions. She said
that she has a nine-page summary to present to the conmttee
that speaks to the issue. The focus of her presentation, she
said, will focus on rising healthcare costs for PERS and TRS and
what the division is doing to manage t hese costs.

9:42: 08 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked that Ms. Ml horn highlight issues that
need addressing by the |egislature.

9:42: 39 AM

M5. MLLHORN referred to her report regarding denographics of
the retirees who have systempaid nedical, where the nenber does
not pay the prem um cost. Beginning in 2001 through 2005, she
expl ained, there was an increase in the population of those
avai l able to receive these benefits, which have an out- of - pocket

maxi mum of $800. "That is a very rich plan," she said. CQut of
$256 mllion of «clainms for 2005, $96 mllion is in the
prescription drug area, she noted. She said she will talk about

initiatives to deal with those costs.
9:44: 34 AM

M5. M LLHORN said Commonwealth North reported that the costs in
Al aska are 40 percent higher than in Seattle, Wshington, and
there are 110,000 uninsured parties in Al aska. She said that
creates a vicious cycle, because uninsured Al askans inpact the
insured. She said growh in enrollnment is not going to change;
there are up to 2,000 nenbers a year who retire, which is a

grow h of 5.3 percent. "The benefit is richer for the retiree
popul ation than the active plan. And what that's referring to
is the [deductibles] that | nentioned earlier...if that nenber

retires from select benefits, which is the active plan, and they
have the econony plan. The econony plan is a plan that we have
in place for active enployees where they pay nothing out of
their pocket; that is a $500 deductible. That has a famly
deducti bl e of $1000. That has an out-of - pocket anmount of $2000.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2006



If an active enployee chooses either the standard plan or the
prem um plan, they pay all of the costs associated with having a
plan at 80 percent or 90 percent. The econony plan pays for 70
per cent . So you would go from an active plan where you have
costs associated with your nedical expenditures that when you
retire you don't experience that kind of cost share with the
pl an. So it is a very rich benefit when you have a retiree
medi cal plan such as PERS and TRS."

9:47:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what percentage of active enployees
has the economny program

9:47:23 AM
M5. MLLHORN said there are about 5,300 who are in the select

benefits plan, and they cover about 8,900 dependents. She will
get the information for him she said.

9:47: 43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON sought confirmation of her wunderstanding
that those still enployed pay; however, when they retire, they
do not pay.

MS5. M LLHORN said this was correct.
9:47:56 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if the benefits are constitutionally
guar ant eed.

9:48: 02 AM

M5. MLLHORN said a lawsuit in 2003 determned that nedical
benefits for Alaska's retirees are protected under Alaska's
constitution, Article XIl, Section 7.

9:48: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said not to forget that all t he
bargaining units have their own insurance. The state used to
have 25,000 enployees plus dependents as active enployees.
However, he said, everybody retires on the plan, even from the
bargai ning units. "Big problem" he clai nmed.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 13- January 25, 2006



CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked the inpact of that.
9:48: 57 AM

M5. MLLHORN said it is "just a larger population that 1is
available to have retiree nedical benefits; it's not just the
5,300 and the dependents. There's approxinmately 14,500 state
cl assified enpl oyees."

9:49:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if other bargaining units have the
sane active plan, and "do they have that same differential that
we have?"

9:49: 54 AM

M5. M LLHORN said she has not studied those health trusts, but
"if you use ours as a baroneter, yes, you're paying nore as an
active enployee than you would be paying when you go to the
retiree plan.™

9:50: 13 AM

CHAI R V\EYHRAUCH sai d t hat si nce t he benefits are
constitutionally protected, would the only way to address
heal t hcare be by managi ng the costs on the receiving end.

9:50: 33 AM

M5. MLLHORN said, "The way that you can nanage those costs are
two ways: one is plan design and the second one is eligibility
audits. "

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if managed care cones into play.
9:51: 09 AM

M5. MLLHORN said managed care is a concept where there is a
consortium of providers that have an agreenent to have network
kinds of costs. "Unfortunately, in the state of Al aska, because
there are nore patients than there are doctors who need to
conpete for patients, we don't have the sane structure that
other states enjoy when they have an HMO [Health Maintenance
Organi zation] and other nmanaged care available.” She said
Al aska's structure doesn't lend itself to managed care.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2006



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there are structural inpedinments that
exi st by statute or by regul ation.

9:52: 01 AM

M5. MLLHORN said it is neither; physicians in Al aska don't have
sufficient conpetition.

9:52: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he has been |ooking at that issue.
There are small statutory barriers to entry for HMs in Al aska
and those need to be reforned. He spoke with the conm ssioner
of Health and Social Services about putting out a [request for
proposal] for Medicaid nanagenent, which alnost all other states
have, which m ght be an inpetus for a HMO to cone to Al aska. He
said the state has other types of nanaged care opportunities
under current underwiting insurance laws in the state.

9:53:22 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked how to resolve the statutory barriers.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said his staff is working on it.
9:54: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noticed that "75 percent of retiree
nmedi cal costs are incurred for pre-65 nenbers.” He asked about
incentives for those people to work | onger.

9:55:52 AM

M5. MLLHORN said it is beneficial to the system for those
individuals to stay in the system |onger, because when retirees
reach age 65, "we coordinate with Medicare, and the cost is
reduced.” She said the system actually gives incentives for an
enpl oyee to retire at the age of 55 and then go do sonething
el se. She added that SB 141 structurally redesigns the plan so
that the individual receives that benefit, that cost-share, at
the time that they are eligible for Medicare. That |egislation
reduces 75 percent of the nedical costs, she said.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said, "That doesn't deal wth the existing

unfunded Iliability, nor the huge ballooning healthcare costs
associated with Tier 1."

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 15- January 25, 2006



9:57: 33 AM

M5. MVLLHORN said, "That is the 800-pound gorilla that is a
national issue, but | think there are some neasures that are
available to us, and we have taken the initiative in certain
areas. "

9:57:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked Ms. MIlhorn to put that on paper
and to explain the difference of soneone retiring at age 63
i nstead of age 65.

9: 58: 36 AM

M5. MLLHORN said for Tier 1 enployees, their normal retirenent
age is 55, so as a Tier 1 enployee, "if you chose to work
| onger, there's no expenditure, there's no premium there's no
clainms cost to the retiree plan; however, if you retire at age
63, you, your spouse and your dependents (if eligible) would be
eligible for systempaid nedical. So at that point in time, our
costs incur. However, when you turn 65, and you' re Medicare-
eligible, Mdicare becones primary, so anything that's allowabl e
under Medicare for those expenditures first flows to Medicare,
then flows to our plan.”

9:59:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would |ike an average cost for the
pre-65 nenbers, "so we can figure out what benefit the system
would gain for each year those persons would stay within the
system "

10: 00: 29 AM

M5. M LLHORN said she can provide sone projections on that.

10: 00: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked about working after the age of 55.

10: 01: 56 AM

M5. M LLHORN said that when soneone is enployed, "their active
pl an pays for their nedical coverage. It is at the tine that
they decide that they are going to retire that the system pays
their premum and pays all of their clains expenses.” So as

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 16- January 25, 2006



long as they're in the systemthere are no costs that accrue to
the retirenent health plan.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked about returning retirees.

10: 02: 46 AM

M5. MLLHORN said there was HB 161 when "the |egislature nade
changes to that bill in order to ensure that their active plan
was primary and that it suspended their retiree plan during
their period of reenploynent."”

10: 03:17 AM

M5. MLLHORN said there was a seminal |law case in 1999, Retired
Public Enpl oyees of Alaska (RPEA) v. Duncan, in which retirees
wanted to be able to update the plan, "and the division was not
reluctant to make those changes; however, they said that those
changes nust be cost neutral to the system” She added that
t hose changes included increases and decreases. "When those
changes were put into effect, January 1, 1999, increases and
decreases...designed to be cost neutral, RPEA, NEA and ASEA
filed suit.” She said that case has been ongoing and is being
litigated right now, and the legal costs to the systemin this
fiscal year will be about $235, 000.

10: 05: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he doesn't care what the |egal fees
are, he wants to know the cost to the system if the state
doesn't prevail. He questioned that the organizations requested
t he changes and t hen sued.

10: 05: 55 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if Ms. MIlhorn said that the parties to
t he case signed off on the changes and then sued.

10: 06: 05 AM

M5. MLLHORN said it is her understanding that those retirees
were active in asking for sone of these changes and that they
| at er brought suit.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the commttee should have the
parties thensel ves explain their actions.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- January 25, 2006



10: 06: 30 AM

M5. M LLHORN said the cost containnent initiatives deal with two
areas: plan-design changes and eligibility audits. “I'n 2004 we
di scovered that our plan booklet for our retirees did not
conport with Al aska statute that individuals between age 19 and

23 had to be enrolled full time in college. That has been an
issue for about 20 years.” So 1000 dependents were renoved,
saving the system $3 nillion. She said the division is now

doing an eligibility audit to ensure benefits only go to those
entitled. Recipients get the benefits on a tax-preferred basis,
she said, and it jeopardizes the plan if the state is paying
benefits to un-entitled people. She said the audit wll save
t he system about $16 million annually.

10: 08: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether dependents weren't checked
on before.

10: 08: 35 AM

M5. MLLHORN said the division did not require docunentation,
and she is talking about, for exanple, a divorce that has
occurred and the state still paid clains. "W have a
demarcation line in which we are telling all of the parties who
are receiving benefits that they nust provide supporting
docunentation in order to continue to receive those benefits."
She noted that national auditing firns have found that every
time an eligibility audit is done, it is discovered that about
15 percent of recipients are not eligible.

10: 09: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the legislators had to submt simlar
docunents when they started service.

10:10:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the |level of auditing was the
sane as it was three or four years ago.

10: 10: 46 AM

M5. MLLHORN said the state had a conprehensive audit in 2004
that | ooked at clainms processing and errors, and the division
made changes in accordance with the audit.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- January 25, 2006



10:11:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked for a copy of the audit and a
list of changes that were made in response to it.

10: 11: 26 AM

M5. M LLHORN said another initiative is generic drugs. The cost
savings is approximately $4 mllion per year. She noted that
there is an educational effort to get retirees to go from a
brand nane drug to a generic drug. "For every 1 percent
nmovenent, it's a mllion dollar savings to the plan,"” she said.

M5. MLLHORN stated that network savings is a very large cost

saver for the plan. It is when the third party adm nistrator
goes out and negotiates wth facilities and providers in order
to arrive at a discounted rate, she said. In the last two

years, the state has had a performance guarantee with Aetna in
the contract where they nust hit that network guaranteed anount.
It is a direct savings to the plan, so if nenbers go to those
facilities that have a network-negotiated rate with Aetna, "our
pl an saves." The nenber saves too because there are |ess out-
of - pocket costs, she noted. It represents a savings of about
$25.8 mllion for 2004. Aetna has to hit that negotiated rate
each year, otherwise they |ose revenue objectives, she stated.
She said there was also a pharmacy rebate through Aetna for
negotiated rates that conmes to $4 mllion each year.

M5. M LLHORN said, "W also successfully applied for, and wll
be receiving, Medicare part D" which is a 28 percent subsidy,
representing $7 million annually. The total savings of the
initiatives are about $59.8 million for calendar year 2006, she
concl uded.

10: 14: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke of the escalation in nedical costs
in Ms. MIlhorn's report, and he said it is different from the
assuned rat es.

10: 14: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the managed-care principles
that were negotiated are part of the |litigation that was
ment i oned. He asked if that has been tested in the courts to

know if the state can do that.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- January 25, 2006



10:15: 24 AM

M5. MLLHORN said the network savings are passive in the sense
that "when our nenber goes to that facility or goes to that
provider, we reap the benefits, but it is not punitive to them
if they don't go."

10: 15: 57 AM

M5. MLLHORN said the nenbers cannot be nonetarily penalized
Now.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if it was different for the active
pl ans.

M5. MLLHORN said there is a [preferred provider] in Anchorage,
and i f nmenbers don't go, they are penalized.

[HB 374 and HB 375 were held over.]

10: 16: 18 AM

ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
10: 16 a. m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- January 25, 2006



